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I. KEY COMPANY INFORIUATION
Background information
Mathira Water & Sanitation Company (MAWASCO) is a private limited company formed under

Companies Act Cap 486 of laws of Kenya established in July 2005. After promulgation of the current

constitution, the company became wholly owned by the County Government of Nyeri.

The company got a license to officially operate as a water service provider in October 2005 and began

operating in December 2005 in compliance with the provisions of Water Act 2002.

Principa! Activities
MAWASCO provides water and sanitation services to both rural and urban schemes of Mathira East and

Mathira West Sub-Counties with population of t48,847 people. The target supply area covers an area of
320 km2 whrch comprises of Konyu, Kirimukuyu, Karatina, Magutu, Iria-ini and Ruguru wards. Some

parts of Kirinyaga County - Ndia division are also within company's area ofcoverage.

At its formation in the year 2005, the company took up most of the Assets that belonged to National

Water Conservation and Pipeline Corporation, Ministry of Water and Irrigation and Karatina Municipal

Council who used to manage the supply of Water and sewer services in the region.

Vision

To be a model Water and Sanitation Sewices Company in Kenya

Mission

Ensure provision ofquality, affordable, reliable, portable and sustainable water and sanitation services to

all residents of Mathira and its environs.

Core Values
.1. Integrity

* Quality
* Professionalism
.:. Customer friendly
* Team work
* Total efliciency
* Creativity and innovation

* Reliability

Strstegic Objectives
* Develop and operationalise a sustainable operation and maintenance progfirmme for the assets

under the management ofthe company.

* Expand sewerage services to cover unsewered areas.

* Improve and extend the infrastructure under Mathira Water and Sanitation Company Ltd.

* Achieve operational financial sustainability by reducing the recurrent expenditure by l0%.
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Directors
The Directors who served the Company during the year were as follows

Company Secretary
Gikuhi Kiana & Co

Certifi ed Public Secretary,

P.O Box l27l -10100

NYERI

Registered Oflice
Ragati Water Offices

P. O. Box l98l - l0l0l
KARATINA

Company Headquarters
Ragati Water Offices

P. O. Box l98l - l0l0l
KARATINA

I
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Name Position Date of Appointment

I Mr. Reuel Kibugi Muriuki Chairman 6s July 20l8

2 Mr. David Gathogo Kamau Managing Director ls' July 2ot8

J Mr. Peterson Muriuki Kigotho Member 25s June 2019

.l Mr Richard Githui Ruhiu Member 25ft June 2019

5 Mr. John Kariuki Muthuma Member 29n January 201 6

6 Mrs. Margaret Muthoni Kinyua Member 29'h January 2016

7 Mrs. Jane P. Warui Waithanji Member 6u July 2ol8

It Mr. Simon Wachira Ngatia Member 26th July 2018

9 Ms, Pauline Wachuka Ndegwa Member l4s october 2019
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Company Contacts
Tel: 020-2659069

Email: info@mawasco.co.ke

Website: www.mawasco.co.ke

Company Bankers

Co-operative Bank of Kenya

Karatina Branch

P. O. Box 931 - l0l0l
KARATINA

Family Bank of Kenya

Karatina Branch

P. O. Box 458 - l0l0l
Karatina

Independent Auditors
Auditor General,

Kenya National Audit Office,
Anniversary Towers,

P.O Box 30084,

Nairobi

Principal f,egal Advisers
The Attorney Ceneral
State Law Oflice
Harambee Avenue

P.O Box 401 l2
City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya

Wahome Gikonyo and Company Advocate
P.O Box 2088-10100,

Tel 0612030822

Nyeri, Kenya
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Mr. Reuel Kibugi Muriuki

Representing Resident /Community Organizations

Holds B. A ( Lands Economics)

Year of Birth: lgftJune 1977

Chrirman - Board of Directors

-

2

Mr. Peterson Muriuki Kigotho

Representing Business Community

Holds O Level division 3

Year ofbirth: I 16 June 1957

Member - Audit Risk and Governance Committee

J

Mr. Richard Githui Ruhiu

Representing Farmers and Cooperative Societies

Holds Master of Business Administration (Strategic

Management)

Year of Birth: 156 August 1976

Member - Technical Committee

I

Mr, Simon Wechira Ngatie

Representing County Govemment of Nyeri

Holds Masters and Bachelor Degree in Education

Year of Birth: 26ft December 1967

Member - Staff, Finatrce and Administration

Committee

5

T
Ms. Pauline W Ndegwa

Representing County Govemment of Nyeri

Holds Bachelor of Arts (Culture Studies)

Year of Birth: l2s July 1979

Member - Technica! Committee
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6

Mrs. Jane Purity Warui Waithanji

Representing Commercial Consumers

Holds Bachelor of Arts (Education).

Year of Birth: 30th April 197 I

Chairperson - Staff, Finance and Administration

Committee

7

Mr. Semmy Kariuki Muturi

Representing Professional Bodies. LSK

Holds Bachelor of Laws (LLB)

Year ofBi(h: l8e February 1977

Member - Staff, Finance and

Committee

Administration

8

Mr. John Kariuki Muthuma

Representing Special Interest groups

Holds O Level

Year of Birth: 56 April 1976

(lhairperson - Technical Committee

I

I
I

Mrs. Margaret Muthoni Kinyua

Representr ng Gender Organizations

Holds O level Ce(ificate

Year ofbirth: 28s December 1964

Ohairperson - Audit Risk and Governance C'ommittee
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Mr. Gikuhi Kisne

Holds Master of Business Administration (Strategic

Management)

Certified Secretary Member No.285

Year of Birth: 25ft December 1952

Company Secretary

n. {

I

E

Mr. David Gathogo Kamau

l{olds B.A (Econ), MBA, CPA (K)

Year of Brrth. 26'h July 1977

Managing Director
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Mr. David Gathogo lfumau

Holds B.A (Econ), MBA, CPA (K)

Managing Director

Nlr. .tames Kinyoko Githige

Holds Bsc Water Engineering

Tc^chnical Manager

Nl r. lllartin lltuhindi Murcbu

Holds B A (Finance). CPA (K)

Commcrcial Manager

ilt r. (likuhi Kiana

Holds Master of
Management)

Business Administration (Strategi(

Certified Secretary Member No.285

Company Secretary
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I 4. CHAIRMAN'SSTATEMENT
In this financial year, the company registered sigrificant improvement on key performance indicators

namely; Non-Revenue Water (NRW) management, revenue collections, water quality, water coverage

and most importantly in ensuring good Company govemance inn executing our core mandate. This can

mainly be attributed 1o lhe reorganization by the board and current management on human resource,

harmonization of company's operations by giving more emphasis on staff productivity, efficient water

supply through proper rationing program and enhanced NRW management. However, emergence of
COVID l9 pandemic in the country lead to decline in company's financial perlormance mainly during

the last quarter of the year. The directive to water service providers by the Covemmenl that consumer

should not be disconnected for non-payment of water bills gleatly affecled revenue collections

During the same period, we managed to complele Karatina Urban Water Rehabilitation Project that

implemented through support liom World Bank under Output Based Aid (OBA) Program at a cost of
Kshs. 108m. As it had been anticipated, successful complelion of the project resulted in decline in NRW
levels and increase in revenue within the Urban scheme. In addition, water supply coverage improved

with extension and revival of water supply system in uncovered areas mainly in Karindundu, Jamaica

and Mathaithi.

The company has also continued embracing new technologr especially in improving efficiency on

operations and as a cost cutting measure. Priority has been in automation of operations in service

delivery thus ensuring efliciency and optimal stalT productivity. Recently established Geographical

Information System (GlS) section has been spearheading mapping ofthe entire network and connections.

CIS system that was implemented under the OBA project was integrated with the also newly acquired

billing system and ultimately aid in NRW management.

The company has also in place a customer complaints management system also integrated with the

billing system. This has eliminated manual recording of customer complaints and ensure effective

handling of complaints including their resolution .rs per customer service charter. Customer bills are also

sent either through text messages (SMS) or emails while cash handling has been eliminated by requiring

customers to pay their bills through Mpesa" Family Bank or at Post olfice.

However, realization of the company's strategic objectives is still being undermined by various

constraints and challenges key among them high NRW levels, Iow water supply coverage, dilapidated

water supply network especially in the Rural Scheme, overstretched & inadequate sewerage system,

inadequate water treatment capacity and lack of finances to implemented planned activities and

programs.
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For the year ended June 30, 2020

Way Forward
The company will continue ploughing back any internally generated finances in undertaking small

projects designed in improving water and sanitation coverage, reduction in NRW management and

improvement on efficiency in service delivery in general.

We also look forward to increased support from both the County Government of Nyeri and the National

Govemment through funding and implementation of key projects both in water and sewerage to improve

both in coverage and quality. lt is only then that the company will be bener positioned to overcome the

outlined major challenges lhus ensure achievement ofset and desired targets and objective.

RI,UEL KIBTIGI MURITIKI
BOARD CHAIRMAN
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5. REPORT OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR
The company managed to produce 3,179,863 cubic meters up from the previous year production of
2,989,472 cubic meters of water. Revenue collected also increased marginally to Kshs. 116,279,438 as

compared to Kshs. I15,580,768 recorded in the 2018/2019$. Howeveq the collection efficiency dropped

from 96Yo to 88% following directive by the govemment to water service providers not to disconnect

consumers for non-payment of bills during the COVID 19 pandemic period as from April 2020.

The company has continued recording steady growth and improvement on olher Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) over time. Water and sanitation coverage has continued to improve as demonstrated in
growth in the number of acfive connections, while NRW levels are declining. This has impacted

positively on revenue collections as also manifested in the financial repon for year, despite challenges

brought about by economic effects of COVID 19 pandemic that undermined the overall performance.

The company has continued utilizing intemally generated funds in extending water pipeline and

distribution network and sewerage system. Public Barraza's are normally organized in liaison with local
public administration in targeted areas in order to engage and sensitize potential customers.

Consequently, water supply has greatly improved especially in areas that were previously uncovered

mainly in Konyu, Kirimukuyu and Ruguru wards including Tumu-Tumu, Ngandu, Kiangoma, Kaiyaba,

Kiamabara, Catina and Kiriko-Giagacuce. The company has also adopted a rationing program to ensure

equitable water supply.

We have has also benefited geatly from the support from the County Govemment of Nyeri toward

improvement in water provision through some specific proJects. These include;

i) Muthira Water Project. Involved construction of an intake weir,4kms of main line and a masonry

storage tank at Njathaini.

ii) Water pipe exlension to Karembu and Gathugu TankVareas.

iii) Drilling of 2no. Boreholes in Konyu Ward.

iv) Rehabilitation of Ragati - Kiamucheru water supply line.

Non-Revenue Water M8[agement
During this year, our main area of focus was on reduction of high NRW levels. For this purpose, a

dedicated NRW management team had been constituted and skills of its members enhanced through

training- NRW management tools and equipment were procured for the team. The company also adopted

District Metering Area (DMA) approach in managing and monitoring of progress in reduction of water

losses. This has seen reduction in NRW levels in already created DMAs from as high as 60% to below

llo/o.The following are some of strategies and programs that are also being employed in efforts towards

NRW reduction;

i) Change of use of UPVC to HDPE pipes

ii) Rehabilitation of old dilapidated network

iii) Metering of flat rate connections
iv) Surcharging and penalizing ofillegal connections

v) Mapping ofthe pipelines and connections

vi) Upgrading of the billing system to minimize commercial loses

xl
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Karatina Urban Water Supply Rehsbilitstion Project
We successful undertook and completed Karatina Urban Rehabilitation Project through support from

World Bank under Out Based Aid (OBA) program at a cost of Kshs. 108,957,510. Upon attainment of
agreed additional I,400 connections targets in the project ara. a 6o0/o subsidy on total project cost was

granled. Therefore, Kshs. 69,954,293 was received fiom Water Sector Trust Fund (WSTF) as subsidy

thus significantly reducing the amount payable lo financing institution (Family Bank).

The main objective of this project was to reduce NRW levels and as a result enhance water coverage

especially in Karindundu and Mathaithi areas. The project entailed;

i) Rehabilitation ofabout 39kms ofpipeline
ii) Rehabilitation of Mathaithi masonry tank

iii) Construction a meter tesling lab and procurement & installation of meter testing bench

iv) Procurement and installation of a GIS software

v) Upgrading of the billing system to allow smart meter reading and integration with GIS

software

Sewerage Services

i) Sewerage Exteniions.- We recently extended sewer lines in Muthua and Ragati areas. Plans are also

in place to extend sewer network using intemally generated funds to cover Karatina Secondary and

some parts of Karindundu.

ii) Kirigu Pumping Station. Routine disludging of ponds and maintenance of pumps at the pumping

station had ensured that no reported incident on pollution of Kirigu river during the year.

iii) Kiaigi Sewerage Plent. Routine application of bio enzymes at Kiaigi sewerage ponds has eliminated

mosquito and bad smell in the area. The facility has also been fenced to restrict access thus improve

on security.

Customer Services

i) Customer Complaints Managemenl The company has a well-established customer care office with

trained personnel. In addition, cuslomer complaints management system has been integrated with

billing system.

ii) Revenue Collection. The company has eliminated cash handling. Customers can pay their bills

either through Mpesa, F'amily Bank account or at any Post office.

Current Challenges
i) l,ow Supply Coverage: The Company serves only about 39% ofthe target population. This is as a

result ofhigh non-revenue water and inadequate water supply.

ii) High Non Revenue Weter: The Company inherited old dilapidated supply network with a lot ol
interconnections leading to high physical losses. In addition, there has been rampant water theft by

consumers especially in the rural scheme through illegal connections and meter by-passes.

iii) lnadequate water treatment c-apacity. Ihwagi treatment plant is overstretched while water supplied

from Ragati and Hombe dams is only chlorinated.

I
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iv) The sewerage system is overstretched to serve the growing urban population. However, the demand

for sewer line extension is also high but the company is unable to meet.

v) Inadequate finances to suppo( investment in rehabilitating water supply network and improvement

/expansion of sewerage system.

Future Plans

i) Rehabilitation and expansion oflhwagi Treatment Plant to increase the treatment capacity.

ii) Construction ofNew Treatment Plants al Ragati and Njathaini

iii) Rehabilitation of the entire reticulation system and storage capacity through support from the County

Govemment of Nyeri, development partners and commercial financing

iv) Construction of alternative sewer treatmenl plant downstream Kirigu River and extension of sewer

network to uncovered areas in Mathaithi, Karindundu, Muthua, Ragati and Gathugu areas.

v) Procure and implement a complete Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system to be integrated with
newly implemented billing and Geographical Information Systems (GIS.

vi) Continuous automation of operations and capacity building of human capital especially in NRW

management and O&M

Way Forward
Moving forward, we will continue embracing technology in all areas of company's operations in order to

improve efficiency and ensure optimal utilization of resources including human capilal. We shall also

continue reaching out and engaging all our stakeholders especially the community within our area of
coverage mainly in consewing the environmenl and more so our sources of water and infrastructure

through planting of trees and in embracing community policing. We also look forward to more

collaboration and seeking support from the two levels ofgovernment, other institutions in the sector and

development partners in various areas of interests.

In conclusion, with the continued efforts and investment on NRW management and expansion ofsupply
network through intemally generated funds, commercial financing and support from the county

govemment, we believe that MAWASCO has a great future.

CPA DAVID GATHOGO KAMAI]
MANA(;ING DTRECToR
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6. REVIEW OF MATHIRA WATER & SANITATION COMPANY'S PERFORI}IANCE FON
FY 2019nO20

The year 2020 marked the end of a 5 years' Strategic plan for FY 201512016-201912020. Over the last

five years the Company has made some gloMh in its various areas of operations. Mawasco operations

and resource mobilization are guided by key strategic pillars which are enshrined in its Strategic Plan.

The following are the key pillars, their targets and achievement during by the end of20l9/2020 FY:

i) Water Coverage

The overall target was to cover 50% of its area of coverage during the five-year strategic plan where the

company managed to achieve 39% by the end 2019/2020fy.During the year the Company managed to

rehabilitate its Urban scheme which enabled the Company to minimize bursts and leakages which

boosted water supply to areas that initially could not get waler. The Company also managed to e-\tension

of water supply to Karembu through the support ofCounty govemmenl ofNyen .

ii) Sanitation Coverage
The overall target was to cover 100% of ils cuslomers in Karatina urban scheme during the five-year

strategic plan where the company managed to achieve 84%. The company is committed to have all the

residents of Karalina Urban connected to sewer system.

iii) Non-Revenue Water Management (NRW)
The overall target for the Company was to reduce the NRW to 40% (though the sector target was 25%)

where the company managed to achieve 48%. The Company managed to install master meters to aid

monitoring of NRW, enhancement of its billing system in order to minimize on commercial loses,

During the year the Company initiated the process of GIS mapping which once completed will assist in
monitoring of connections

iv) Collection Efliciency
The Company recorded a drop from 96Vo to 88o/o. The Company has endeavoured to ensure that

collection on services offered and billed are done promptly. However, during the year, the company

collection efficiency was affected by the emergence of the Covid l9 pandemic which greatly affected

both consumption and economic power of the customers.

I
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The table below summarizes key pillars

Strategic
Pillar

Objectives Key
performance
Indicetors

Activitics Achievements

l.Water
Supply
Coverage

To cover 507o

ofthe
Company
area of
coverage

Increased
supply hours

Increase in
active
Connections

Rehabilitation of
dilapidated system

Extension of water
supply network

Rehabilitation of
storage tanks to
increase capacity

The company managed to
rehabilitate its U6an
Scheme, Storage tanks,
and also did some
extensions. This helped
the company to cover
39o/o

2. Sanitation
Coverage

To cover
100% of
Karatina
Urban

Increase in
number ol
s€wer
connections

Exlension of sewer line The company managed to
connect more urban
customer to the existing
sewer network. The
Company have 847o of its
Urban Customers
connected to sewer.

To reduce
NRW to 40%

Decrcasc in
NRW

Ensuring thal there is
100% metering ratio

Rehabilitation of supply
system

Upgrading ofbilling
system to facilitate
proper analysis

The Company managed lo
have 94% ofall
connections metered,
rehabilitate Karatina
Urban supply system,
enhancing billing
systems. This helped the
Company to reduce the
NRW to 48olo compared
to 52%o of the last
financial year.

4.Collection
Efficiency

To collect
98o/o of all
billed amount

Decrease in
alTears

Timely billing and
prompt disconnection
for customers with
alrears

The company managed to
collect 88% ofall the
amount billed. This was a
drop from 967o that was
achieved in the previous
financial year.

\!

I
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3.Non-
Revenue
Water(NRW)
Management

The Company achievements was possible tkough staff tesmwork. Every team member has a clear target

that are derived from the main company objectives through performance contracts which are reviewed

after every for monlh.
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7. CORPORATEGOVERNANCE STATEMENT
MAWASCO is committed to be operating under a clear govemance framework and strongly adheres to

sound management and control practices. The company is also committed in ensuring compliance with

the provisions of Waler Act 2016 and adherence to Company's operating license conditions issued by

Water Services Regulatory Board (WASREB) and other guiding company govemance requirements.

a) Operations of the Board
ln ensunng that Company governance is enhanced and that the power of MAWASCO is exercised in the

stewardship of the company total portfolio of assets and resources with the objective of maintaining

stakeholder value, the Boards of Directors have constituted the following committees:

i) Staff & Finance and Administration Committee
The Staff, Finance & Administration Committee is the overseer of the financial reporting process and

sourcing of funds for Company's capital works.

MAWASCO makes cognizance of the fact that Human resources is one single asset in achieving the

goals of the Company. It's the duty of the Finance and Administration Committee to ensure thal

MAWASCO has th€ right stafT, at the right place and doing the right thing. More so, the Committee will
ensure that staff welfare is guaranteed.

ii) Technicsl Committee
The Committee is the overseer of the technical reporting process.

It shall ensure that there is adequate asset development, maintenance and inkastructure improvement to

ensure sustainability of all water infrastructures.

iii) Audif Risk and Governance Committee
In order to promote good Company governance, MAWASCO has constituted an Audit Committee for
purposes of

. Safeguarding of the assets.

. Scope and eflectiveness ofthe intemal controls.

. Review ofthe Annual financial statements.

. Compliance with all applicable regulatory requirements and accounting standards.

T

Period l)ate Meeting Metting
Attendence

l " Quarter I 8th July 20 l9 Special Full Board Meeting 8 Members

6s September 2019 Inaugural Full Board Meeting 8 Members

166 September 2019 Technical Committee 2 Members

xv l

b) Board Meetings
The following is a list of Board Meetings that were held during the year.
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I 86 September 20 | 9 Audit, Risk & Govemance Committee 2 Members

196 September 2019 Staft, Finance & Administration Committee 3 Members

26s September 201 9 Full Board Meeting 9 Members

2'd Quarter 22d November 2029 lnterviews for Commercial Manager's

Position

8 Members

2'd December 2019 Staff, Finance & Administration Commitlee 3 Members

3'd December 20 l9 '['echnical Commrttec 3 Members

4s December 201 9 Audit, Risk & Govemance Committee 2 Members

I ls December 2019 ['ull l]oard Mee ting 8 Members

3'd Quarter l0s February 2020 Technical Committee 2 Members

l20'February 2020 Audit, Risk & Govemance Committee 2 Members

l3e February 2020 Staff, Finance & Administration Committee 3 Members

2 I "' February 2020 Full Board Meeting 9 Members

4'h Quarter 206 May 2020 Audit, Risk & Govemance Committee 3 Members

2l{ May 2020 Technical Committee 3 Members

22dMay2020 Staff, Finance & Administration Committee

9s June 2020 Full Board Meeting 8 Mcmbcrs

c) Succession Plen
The Board of Directors comprises of seven (7) independent directors that are appointed from the

stakeholders' groups as stipulated in the Company's Memorandum of Articles and Association. Two (2)

other directors are nominated by County Govemment of Nyeri. The independenl directors serve for a

three (3) years tenn and a third of the directors must retire annually. Retiring directors that have served

for one term are eligible for re-election ofanother term of similar duration.

d) Proce*s ofrppointment and removal of directors
The independent directors are appointed by the shareholders during the company's annual general

meeting (AGM). The prospective candidates must first be nominated by a stakeholder group that should

have a representative in the board as per company's memorandum and articles of association. There

must also be a vacancy under such category. Such vacancies are normally declared by the board and

advertised in one national daily newspaper. The applicants must meel sel requirements which include

compliance with Chapter six of Constitution of Kenya- A selection committee made up of members from

the stakeholders analyses the applications and present list ofqualified candidates during the ACM.
Two (2) board members are nominated by the County Govemment of Nyeri. Their nomination is

presented to the board ofdireclors for adoption.

Annually, one third of the independent directors must retire. This is based on the age of individual

member in the board. A director may also be removed from the board for gross misconduct, violation of
signed code ofconduct or the constitution.

xtx
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e) Induction and training
Every new board member is undertaken through induction on company's operations. 1'raining on

Company govemance including the role of the board and management is organized for all board

members once a year.

0 Board and Members Performance
The board and board committees have their terms of reference and annual targets based on which

members conduct performance evaluation annually.

g) Conflict of Interct
It is a requirement that all board members make declaration o[any conflict ofinterest in agenda ofevery
board meeting. This is done in writing in a book provided for this purpose and the same recorded in the

minutes for board meetings. Any member with a conflict of interest must excuse themselves in

deliberations of that agenda.

k) Remuneration for Board Members
Eloard members are paid a consolidated allowance to cater for sitting and other expenses for every

meeting attended. The directors are also paid subsistence allowances while on assignment or attending

meetings and official functions outside the county.

Essential to the establishment of a good governance framework are formal governance structures

designed to ensure accurale reporting to the Board to facilitate an informed decision making process,

assessment and improvement of conformance as shown below.

l) Ethical Conduct:
As a public service company we have a responsibility to act as a good Company citizen all around the

county. As a company we recognize and perform the obligations we have towards our people, investors,

customers, suppliers, competitors and the community as a whole. We believe our reputation, together

with the trust and confidence ofthose with whom we deal, to be one ofour most valuable assets. ln order

to keep this reputation and trust, we demand and maintain the highest ethical standards in carrying out

our business activities. All of our employees are required to abide by our ethical policy, which outlines

company core values and approach to doing business. The protection ofour reputation is of fundamental

importance, and employees are aware of the disciplinary implications of breaches of policy. The policy

helps to uphold the reputation ofour compa.ny and staff, and maintains public confidence.

I
T
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8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSrc
The Company operates two major Schemes (Urban and Rural). During the ye4r the Company made a

major milestone in rehabilitation of its Urban Scheme at a cost of Ksh 108,957,5 l0 which was through

loan facility which was 60% subsidized by donors through Water Sector Trust Fund (WSTF). The

Company's operations however continued to be affected by the emerging Community Based Water

Project in the area ofoperations, especially in rural areas and this has made the Company not to recover

on the heavy capital investments being used to extend water to those areas since customers end up

shifting to these Community based water Projecs. The delay in payment of utility bills especially by

Govemment Institution is also a major setback in operation as this denies the Company the float to
finance its operation as per the planned budget.

During the year the company revenue performance is as shown in the table below:

Billing vs Collections During the 2Ol9l2O2OFy (Ituh in Million)

Graphical Representation

Billing vs Collection

Month
Jul-
l9

Aug-
l9

Sep-

l9
Oct-
t9

Nov-
I9

Dec-

t9
Jan-

20

Feb-

20
Mr-
20 20

May-
20

Jun-

20 Totals

Billing 92 10.9 98 10.0 9.8 9.9 10.5 10.4 t0.0 9.t 8.4 il6.38.4

Collections 9.5 8.1 8.0 8.t 10. I 8.1 9.5 {r. I 6.4 t 02.8

2S.O

2o.0

t5.o

loo

5.O

o.o

------
lul.19 Aua-19 S.p.!9 O(r.19 Nov.19 Oe(-19 .lrn.2o Feb'2O M..-2O Apr-2O May-7O ,un-2o

-Billin, 

(Xilr In Mlllions) 

-ColLcrions 

(l(rh an Million3l

The performance \ryas greatly affected by the Covid 19 pandemic as from the month of March 2020 as

depicted in the graph above.

cost summary for the 2019/2021 Fy
('ost ltem Amount (Kes)

Personnel Costs 52,727,966

Directors Costs 3,254,500

Administration Expcnscs t9,@5,093

Operation & Maintenance Costs 67,789,t39

TOTAI, 14J,416,698

xxl
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Chart presentation of expenditure for the 2019/2021 Fy

Ependiture

I'cr $.rd.l C Gre

adnrlnlsr.drlon axpe,E.r Op...tirI & M.lnr.^a*. Coea!

The table below shows the Company progress in its performance as it executed the 2015/2016-

20 I 9 /2020 strategic plan

The Company operations during the year were geatly affected by the effects of the Covid 19 pandemic,

compared with the previous year perFormance. This halted its gowth in collection and collection

efficiency which dropped from Ksh. I I I,140,984 to Ksh. 102,765,577 and 960/o to 88% respectively.

Parameter
FY
zotrlfi5 t't'2015/16

FY
20t6fi7

I.'Y 2017/t8 r-Y 20t 8/19 Fl' 20 t 9/20

Waler I'roduction 4, 173,000 3,368,463 3,104,871 3,245,943 2,989,472 3, r 79,863

Billing (KSh)
94,403,358 t03,300,247 98,924,056 t05.72 I.854 I 15,580,768 I 16.27e,438

Colleclion (KSh) 89.907.848 95.520.637 98.836.4 r 9 100.587. I 50 ll I.140.984 t02.765.577

Collection
El'licienry

95o/o 93o/o 960h 95oto 96orit 88o/o

No. of Registered

Conn.

20,277 20.047 20.724 20.720 22,026 23.009

No. of
Connections

Active
7,554 8.399 8.43 I 9,374 10,7 I 5 I I,36s

No. of Active
Metered Connections

5,768 6,408 6.408 8.857 t0,072 t0.599

o/o of
Covcrage

Water
3l .3o/" 32o/o 33o/o 34o/o 360h 39o/o

No, of Sewer

Connections
2.448 2.564 2.679 2.73 8 2.882 3 078

o/o of Sanitation

Coverage
600/0 660/o 690/o 730/o 79o/o 840,i,

o/o of NRW 621:o 59o/o 560/o 54lo 52Yo 4\Yo

xxt I
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" ftr#flffiL. socrAl REspoNsrBrl,rry srArEMENr /susrArNABrl,rry
MAWASCo exist to ensure there is provision of quality, affordable, reliable, portable and sustainablewater and sanitarion services ro arr residents of Mathira ird it, 

"nri.onr. 
Thi. ;;;;rrp.re; the drivingforce behind everything we do. It's what guide ,, ;;J;. o* straregy. Berow is our brief highrights ofour achievement in delivering our pillars.

i) Sustainebility Strates/ strd profile
The company is committed in ensuring provision of quarity, affordabre, reriabre, portabre andsustainable water and sanitation services in it. u."a of junsdiction. we ar" roc-rseo on creatingsustainabre varue for both our customers and stakehorders by aligning our rong_term company,sstrategies with their tnterests As we continue to extend our services across the areu 

-of 
Ju.irdiction, *"seek to address the environmental' social and govemance risks that effects our operations in a mannerthat is consistent with our values. our upproulh a *roinuui,lr, is to address the material risks andopportunities that may impact on our customers and the communities in which we operate in. This wi,be achieved throu*h coraboration with the counf cor",n,,"r, of Nyeri, our reguratoq rocarcommunities and other stakeholders.

ii) Environmenhlperformance
The company believes that, by their nature, our operations have a minimal impact on the environment.However' we acknowledge that there u,. in"rirrir" 

-"nrironmental 

impacts ur.o"i","o with dailyoperations we aim to minimize any harmful 
"ft""t, 

unJ.onrider the development and implementationof environmentar standards ,o..u.li::" this to be 
"rsr""r-ir.n"gnce. rt is anticrpated that by adopting

;I*;""r"#il#lv ftendlv initiatives, ,rt" 
"o,ni"v'*rr raise awarenes, 

".."*.ir*"horders and

iii) Employee Welfare
Employee hiring is on competitive basis alljob is advertised and emproyment is on merit. Gender ratio isput into consideration and r/3 rure is ur*uyr.orrio"J Emproyee ru'r., in rot"r,oraer,s engagement
]:l^]T. 

*rj"r"rs and improves the customer's services. The company trains its emproyee on variouslnterest and needs this help to improve their working ski s. Job pracement is done on'skiled possessedby employees. Appraisar ofstaffis done and thi, ;.;;;;'g"g" their performance. A reward system hasbeen established and the best performance are."**d"d. 
- 

'
iv) Market placc practices
a) Responsible compelition practice

The company ensure there 
.

reportingarcomr*,-r#,l"jl;';H.'r"Jtr:ffi l:,ffi ;,ffi :,TilT#J::ffi 
,",:Tr?,,

does not involve itself with polirical activities hr*";;; i, recognizes the political holders ofthe dayin power. The company alows supply of water to the residence of Mathira by rhe neighbouring wSpin areas that the company is not in a posirion to supply

xxnr
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received

b) Responsible supply chain and supplier relationt . . . ,

The company 
"ngug" 

it' 
'Jpir"i"i'* "ornp"tltive 

bids through annual tenders or quotations and

ensures theY are Paid on time

., 
H'Jffi:Ifl:I::-t;l: ifl"J,TffIertisement br its products and services both on print and

electronic media without misleading its customer'

d) Product stewardship 
aid for, and are only billed for services

The company ensures that customer receives servlces p
t

I)*,*t;.T,Tr',il: r.:-r;IJ**,y ltd practices 
:olneanv 

sociar responsibilitv within its area of

jurisdiction. The company i, l;i;"; wrth the office of the assistant chiefs has identified persons living

withdisabilitiesandotherneedycasesMawASCohasconnectedsuchidenlifiedpersonswithwater.
The work involves: -

a) Free cost of installation for metered service lines

b) Free water consumption

c) Free maintenance of such connectlons

The company ul.o ,porro., iluth-i.a education fund which is a kitty meant to benefit less privileged

il:r:ilff:;tj] * annual visitation to children home within its area of jurisdiction where it

provides social amenities to them. In addition, the company provides free tree planting seedlings to local

illHi'ff ffT,:ff l['ffl" dearings .Y:l "u:o'o' " i 
p:':q:i']1"- ror a successrur and

sustained business ,"ru,tonrilfi i" op"r*" 
-u 

highly effective and efficient organization' focused on

meeting customer objectiver'our aim is to provide prJucts and services which give fair value and

consistent quality, reliabilrr, *i *i",, in retum^for fair reward. we operate policies of continual

improvement,ofbottrprocessesandtheskillsofourstaff'totakeb€stadvantageofadvancesin
technologl. This safeguards "" "**t'"* 

for the future' ensuring that we continue to add value to our

customers' businesses'

xxlv
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IO. REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended June

30, 2020 which show the state of Mathira Water and Sanitation Company Ltd affairs.

Principrl activities
The principal activity of the Company is to provide water and saritation services to residents of Mathira

East and Mathira West Sub counties in Nyeri County

Results

The results of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 arc set out on page 2

Auditors
The Auditor Ceneral is responsible for the statutory audit of Mathira Water and Sanitation Company Ltd

in accordance with the Article 229ofthe constitution of Kenya and public Audit Act 2015

By Order of the Board

Gikuhi Kiana & Co

Certifi ed Public Secretary,

Po Box l27l -10100

NYERI KENYA

Date 28s September 2020

xxv
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Directors
The members of the Board of Directors who sewed during the year are shown on pge 3-7 ln accordance

with Regulation of Mathira Water and Sanitation Company Ltd Articles of Association.
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II. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
Section 8l(i) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and public audit Act require the Directors to
prepare financial statements in respect of that MAWASCO, which give a true and fair view of the state

of affain of the MAWASCO at the end of the financial.year 2019-2020and the operating results of the

MAWASCO for that year 2019-2020. The Directors are also required to ensure that the MAWASCO
keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position ol the

MAWASCO. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Company's financial statements,

which give a true and fair view of the state of aflairs of the company for and as at the end ofthe financial
year ended on June 30, 2020. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial
management arrangemenls and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting
period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the company; (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining intemal controls
relevant to the preparation and fair pr€sentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are

free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the

company; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the company finarrcial statements, which have been prepared using

appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgrnents and estimates, in conformity
with lntemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and in the manner required by the PFM Act and the

State Corporations Act- The Directors are of the opinion that the company's financial statements give a true

and lair view of the slate ofcompany's transactions during the linancial year ended June 30,2020 and of the

company's financial position as at that date. The Directors further confirm the completeness of the

accounting records maintarned for the company, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the

company's financial statements as well as the adeqtucy of the systems of intemal financial conrol.
Nothing has come to the attention of the Directon to indicate that the company will not remain a going

concem for at least the next twelve months iiom the date of this stratement.

Approval of the financiel stetements

Mathira Water and Sanitation Company financial statements were approved by the Board on 286

September 2020 and signed on is behalf by:

I

REIIEI, KIBIIGI
BOARDCHAIRMAN

CPA DAVID GATHOGO
MANAGING DIREC'I'OR

xxvt

.tllb



Telephone; +254-(2o) l214ooo
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.6ENEBAL

LnhunL inx ,1tL ountthilitt

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box loo84-oo1oo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON MATHIRA WATER AND SANITATION
COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2O2O

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mathira Water and Sanitation
Company Limited set out on pages 1 to 31, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 30 June, 2020 and the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effects of the mafter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Mathira Water and Sanitation Company Limited as at
30 June, 2020 and of its financial performance and its cash flows forthe year then ended,
in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with
the Water Act, 2016 and Companies Act, 2015 and the Public Finance Management Act,
2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Capital Reserves

The statement of financial position reflects capital grants balance of Kshs.65,904,745
which includes development grants amounting to Kshs.41 ,597,900. However, as
previously reported, only grants amounting to Kshs.32,673,194 were supported by a
listing of the Government of Kenya funded projects undertaken before the inception of the
Company, resulting in a variance of Kshs.8,924,706 which was not explained.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Mathira Water and Sanitation Company
Limited Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I

believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my qualified opinion.

Report o/ the Auditor-Generol on Mqlhiro l{ater and Sonitation Compony Limitedfor the year ended 30 June, 2020



a
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other lnformation

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the Report of Directors as required by the Companies Act, 2015, and the statement of the
Directors' responsibilities which are obtained prior to the date of this report, and the
annual report which is expected to be made available after that date.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

ln connection with the audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or the knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Based on the work I have performed on
the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, if I conclude that
there is material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I

have nothing to report in this regard.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ol the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusions on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1.0 Non-Revenue Water

During the financial year under review, the Company produced alolal of 2,767,391 cubic
meters of water, out of which only 1,513,5'12 cubic meters was billed to customers, leaving
a balance of 1,285,246 (or about 460/o) of the total volume of water produced as Non-
Revenue Water (NRW), which is 21% over and above the allowable 25Yo set by the Water
Services Regulatory Board Guidelines. The Non-Revenue Water of 467o resulted in a
loss of sales estimated at Kshs.98,742,317. The significant level of non-revenue water
has a negative impact on the Company's profitability and its ability to sustain services. No
evidence was provided of any efforts by the Company to address the situation.

2.0 Unmetered Water Connections

The revenue income of Kshs .142,420,329 reflected in the statement of profit and loss and
other comprehensive income includes an amount of Kshs.1 16,279,438 arising from billing
of customers. However, the Company had budgeted to receive revenue totalling

Repo of rhe Auditor-Generul <tn L,lalhira llater ond Sqnilation Comparu Limited lor the year ended 30 June, 2020
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Kshs.142,240,078 from billing of customers, but realized Kshs.116,279,438 or about
82%. No explanation was provided for the shortfall of Kshs.25,960,640.

Further, analysis of customer records indicates that although the Company had a total of
9,891 connections as at 30 June, 2020, some 659 (or about 6%) connections were
unmetered, each being charged a flat rate of Kshs.500 per month, irrespective of actual
consumption. No explanation was provided for failing to meter all the connected
customers and charge them according to actual amount of water consumed to maximize
on revenue. The unmetered connections could be a major contributor to Non-Revenue
Water (NRW) to the Company and consequently to loss of revenue.

3.0 Staff Regional Diversity

During the year under review, the Company had a total of seventy-seven (77) employees
out of which seventy{wo (72) or 94% were from one dominant ethnic community. This is
contrary to Section 7 (1) and (2) of the National Cohesion and lntegration Commission
Act, 2008 which requires that all public establishments seek to represent the diversity of
the people of Kenya in the employment of staff and that no public establishment should
have more than one third of its staff from the same ethnic community.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that lplan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence lhave
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

As required by the Companies Act, 2015, I report based on my audit, that:

i. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit;

ii. ln my opinion, adequate accounting records have been kept by the Company, so
far as appears from the examination of those records; and,

Report ofrhe Auditor-Ceneral on Mathira llater and Sanitalion Comp(lny Limitedfor the),eor ended 30 June, 2020
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iii. The Company's financial statements are in agreement with the accounting
records and returns.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of intention to liquidate the Company or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public
Audit Act, 201 5.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process,
reviewing the effectiveness of how the Company monitors compliance with relevant
legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and systems
are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance and risk
management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and rnformation reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Report ofthe Auditor-Generol on Mothiro Water and S(rnilqtion Compqt+' Limitedfor the year ended 30 June, 2020
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Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 20'l 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and inslances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

Report ofthe Auditor-Generol on Mathira l{ater and Sanitotion Compotry Limitedfor the ya7 enlsd 30 June, 2020
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I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA u, CBS

Na irobi

O3 February,2022

Report of the Auditnr-Generol on Mathiro ll'ater qnd Sanitation Compary., Limitedfitr the year ended 30 June, 2020
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13. STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JTINE 2O2O

REVENT]ES
I15,580,768116,279,4386Revenue

7 ,707,874
.I

26,140,891Other Income
123,288,642142,420,329TOTAL REVENUES

OPERAT'ING EXPENSES
50,625,82852,727,9668Personnel Costs

9 3,254,500Directors Expcnses

77222 7',75t9,919,t 10l0Administration Costs
44,817,46567 ,51s,122llOperation and Maintenance

1,721,118t2 0Finance Costs

t 23,799,583143,416,698TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

(510,941)(996,368)PROFIT(LOSS) BEFOR-E TAXATION

I

lNote l2Ol9nO20__-{-_-------+--
I llGhs Kshs

2018/2019

3,859,400



I

I

I

I

I

14. S'I'ATEMENT OT'FINANCIAI, POSITION AS A'I'3OTH JTINT] 2O2O

'r'o't'AL EQU[rY AND r-rABtLrilt]S t 12.682.99J

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 28ft September 2020 and signed on its behalf

by:

Managing Director Head of Finance Board Chairman
Name. David Gathogo Name: Martin Murebu

ICPAK M/NO:25425

Namc: Rcuel Kibugi

sisn... @/il|

)

r\SST]TS

Non-(lurrent Assets

80,745,300 22,417,919Propcrty, plant and equipmenl l4
l5 s,704,847 0Intangible assets

E6,,t50,147 22,4t7,919f'otal Non-Current Asets
Current Assets

12,053,549 6,964,214Inventories l6
l7 53,665,527 42,976,167Trade and other receivables

I,5 I 8,87524

38,805,8 t 8Bank and cash balances l8 25,414,654

to2,799,646 90,26S,07,1l'otal Non-(lurrent Assets

r r2,6E2.993TO-I'AI, CII RRENT AND NON-('I-IRRENT
ASSETS
EQI]ITT' AND LIABILITIES

1E9,249,793

(lapital and Reserves

t00,000l9 t00.000

65,904,745 65.904,?45

Ordinary share capital

Capital reserve

22 (33,803,095) (32,806,7271Retained earnings

t2,20t,650 33,198,0r 9(lapital and Reserves

Non-(lurrent l,iabilities
23 88,335,207 23 000 000Bonowings

n8Jrs,207 23,000,000'l-otal Non-('urrent l.iabilities

25 68,7t2,937 56.484.974Trade and other payables

('u rrent Liabilities

68,712,937 56,484,97.1l-otal (f urrent Liabilities
I tt9,249,793

S r8n... Sign

.Mathira Water and Sanitation Compeny
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. For the year ended June 3O 2020

Deferred Tax Asset

I

I

2019t2020

I(shs

201812019

I(rhs
Note

I1,66s,915

20

(l \
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I

100.0fi) 65,904,7{5 (32,29s,786) 3.t,708.959At July l, 2018

(510.941 )
comprehensiveTotal

income
(s l0.e4r )

At June 30, 2019 l0O.m,0 65,9(X,7.15 (32,806,7271 3J,r98,0r8

At July l,2019 t00,(xx) 65,90{,745 (J2,806,727) J3,I98.01tt

(996.336) (996,336)
comprehensiveTotal

income

At June 30, 2020 100,(xxr 65,90.1,7{5 (33,803,09s) 32,20t,650

I5. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2O2O

T

I

3

i1

Ordinrr;
shere
cepital

('rpital
rLqierve

Retained earnings 'l'otal
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I6. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JTINE 2O2O

I

I

23,40t,t69 | 4,768,129

23,401,t69 4,76E,,t29

(9.955.391)(e3.10,676) 
1

(8,ss6r843) 
I

0

I

CASH AND CASH EQ[]IVALENTS AT f,ND OF
THE YEAR

( r02,r 27,519) (9,955,391)

85,957,5 t0 21,000.000

65J35,207 21,000,000

(13,391,r43) 1s,8r2.738

38.80s.8 r8 22.993.080

2s.414.6ss 38.805.818

I

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 27

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

t4

t5

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property. plant and equipment

Intangible iisets

Net cash ginerated from(uscd in) invcsting activities

23

23
Repayment of borrow ings

l8

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

(20.622,303)

Note 201s2020

Kshs

20t&20t9
Krhs

(.ASH FLOWS F'ROM OPT]RA'I'INC ACTIVII'I1)S

(]ASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIf,S

Proceeds from borrowings

Net cash generated from/(used in) fineilcing actiyities

INCREASE(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQtIVALENTS
(]ASH AND CASH EQT]IVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OP YEAR
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I7. STATEMENT OT (]OMPARTSON OF BUDGET AND AC'TUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE
PERIOD ENDED 3OI1I JUNE 2O2O

Lshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Water Sales t02.t82.6t3 102. t 82.613 75.999.189 (26.t83.4241

34.057.465 34.0s7.46s 24.O03,922 ( 10.053.543 )Sewer

16,276.327 10,276,321C)ther income 6,000,000 6.000.000

5.097.378 (5,097,378)thcTransfers from

County Government

2l,043,s 13Donations in kind WSTF 2l,043,513

Rcvenue 112,210,078 0 r 42,240,078 t12,120,32e

E x penses

Personnel Cost 55.680.000 (3.000.000) 52.680.000 52.727.X$ (47.966)

4.360.000 4,360,000 3,254,500 I,105,500

24.896.000 (400.000) 24.496.000 19,9 r9, il0 4.576,890

Directors Cost

Administrative cost

Operations

Maintenance Cost

and 73,333,729. ( 100.000) 73.233.729 67,515.122 5.718.607

Finance Cost 1 700 000 3,500,000 6,200,000 0 6.200,000

Total expenditure 160,969,729 0 1ffi,969,729 1.13.{16,698

5
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For the year ended June 30, 2020

Budgct Analysis
a) Revenue

The company realised revenue ofKes 137,322,951 against the budgeted Kes.l42, 240,078.The
non-achievernent was due to;

i) Covid 19 pandernic that affected the general operations ofthe compsny.
ii) Migration of customeas to community water projects.
iii) Uncontrolled abstraction of water from Ragati river by irrigation projects affecting

production at intakes
iv) High Non-Revenue Water due to illegal connections and interconnections by cornmunity

water projects.

b) Directors Costs
The Company incurred a cost of Kes.3, 254,500 against the budget ofKes. 4,360,000.This was

because the Company could not hold sorne ofthe scheduled Board ofdirector's activity as a result
of Covid 19 pandanics thm called offpublic gatherings and meetings.

c) Administretive Costs
The Company incurred a cost ofKes. 19.919,1l0 against the budget ofkes. 24,496,000. The
reduction was due to:

i) Reduced travelling of staff as a result of Ministry of Health directive on Covid 19

guidelines that restricted movements and public gatherings.

ii) Reduction in printing and stationeries due to emphasis on paperless data transfers.
iii) Reduction in Staffwelfare cost as a result of financial constraints
iv) Reduction ofTraining costs as a result ofcancellation ofscheduled trainings due to Covid

l9 pandemic guidelines

d) Operations and Maintenence Cost
The Company incuned a cost ofKes. 67,515,122 against a budga ofKes. 73,233,729.The
reduction was due to reduced cost of meter was as a result of rchabilitation of Karatina Urban
Scheme which resulted to reduced operation and maintenance costs.
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I8. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Mathira water and Sanitation Company limited is established by and derives its authority and

accountability from water Act 2002. The Company is wholly owned by the County Govemment of
Nyeri and is domiciled in Kenya. The Company's principal activity is distribution of water and

provision of sewerage services to the residence of Mathira East and Mathira West in Nyeri County

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement at

re-valued amounts of cenain iterns of property, plant and equipment, marketable securities and

financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable arnounts and

actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) allows the use of estimates and

assumptions. lt also requires management to exercise judgpment in the process of appllng the

Company's accounting policies.

The financial statemenls have been prepared and presanted in Kenya Shillings, which is the frrnctional

and reporting currancy of the Mathira Water and sanitation Company.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State Corporations

Act , and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting policies adopted have

been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3. APPLICATTON OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (I FRS)

i) Relevant new standards and amendments to pnHishcd standards elfective for the yerr
ended 30 June 2020

IFRS 16: l,eases

The new standard, effective for annual periods beginning on or after lst January 2019, introduces a

new lessee accounting model, which requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases

with a term of more than l2 months, unless the underllng asset is oflow value. A lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease

liability represenling its obligadon to make lease payments.

IFRIC 23: Uncert inty Over income tax trcetmen8
The interpretation addresses the determination oftaxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,

unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treaunents under IAS 12. lt
specifi cally considers:

. Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively

. Assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations

. The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, lmused tax
credits and tax rates

. The effect ofchanges in facts and circumstalces

1
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Arnendmen8 to IFRS 9 tifled Prepeyment Fc{tures with Negative Compcnsation (issued

in October 2017)

The amendments, applicable to annual periods beginning on or after I January 2020, allow entities to

measure prepay able financial assets with negative compensation at amortised cost or fair value

through other comprehansive income if a specified condition is met.

Amendments to IAS 2E titled l.otrg-term Intcres8 in Associrtca and Joint Venturcs (issued

in October 2017)

The amendments, applicable to annual periods beginning on or after lsl January 2020, clarifu that a

Company applies IFRS 9, rather than IAS 28, in accounting for long-term interests in associates and

joint ventures.

Amcndmenb to IFRS 3 - Annual Improvements to I FRSS 2Ol5-2O17 Cycle, issued in
Dccember 2017.

The amendments, applicable to annual periods beginning on or after lst January 2020, provide

additional guidance on applying the acquisition method to particular R?es ofbusiness combination.

Amcndntcnb to IFRS tl - Annual lmprovements to IFRSg 20ll20l7 Cycle, issued in
Dccember 2017

The amendments, applicable to annual periods beginning on or after lst January 2020, clari! that

when a Company obtainsjoint control of a business that is a joint operation, it does not re-measure its
previously held interests

Arnendmenb to IAS 12 - Annual lmprovements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, issued in
December 2017

The amendments, applicable to annual periods beginning on or after lst January 2020, clariry that all

income tax consequences of dividends should be recogrrized when a liability to pay a dividend is

recognized, and that these income tax consequences should be rerognized in profit or loss, other

comprehersive income or equity according to where the Company originally recognized the

transactions to which they are linked.

Amendmcn6 to IAS 23 - Annual lmprovemenB to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, issucd in
Ilecember 2017

The amendments, applicable to annual periods beginning on or afler lst January 2020, clariry that the

costs of borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifting asset that is
substantially completed can be included in the determination of the weighted average of borrowing

costs for other qualiffing assets.

Amendmen8 to IAS 19 titled Plan Amendment, Curtailrnent or Settlement (issued in
Februsry 2019)

The amendments, applicable to plan amendments, curtailmerts or settlements occurring on or afler the

beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after lst January 2020, requires an
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Company to use updated actuarial assumptions to determine current service cost and nel interest for
the remainder ofthe annual reporting period affer lhe plan amendment, curlailment or settlement when

the Company re-measures its net defined benefit liability (asset) in the manner specified in the

amended standard.

Amcndments to IAS I and IAS 8 Dcfinition of mate rial
The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in tAS I easier to under$and and are

not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. The concept of
'obscunng' material information with immaterial information has been included as part of the new

definition. The threshold for materiality influancing users has been changed from 'could influence' to
'could reasonably be expected to influence'. The definition ofmaterial in IAS 8 has been replaced by a

reference to the definition of material in IAS l. In addition, the IASB amended other Standards and the

Conceptual Framewort that contain a definition of material or refer to the term'material' to ensure

consistenry. The amendments are applied prospstively for annual periods beginning on or after I
January 2020, with earlier application p€rmitted

ii) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yct effective ln the year
ended 30 June 2020

IFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts (lsrued lE May 2017)

IF'RS I 7 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfillment value and provides a more

uniform measurement and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These requirements are

designed to achieve the goal ofa consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS

I 7 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts as of I January 2021 .

Anrendments to Refercnccs to the Conccptual Framework in IFRS Stendards (lssued 29

Marcb 2019- Applicable for rnnual periods @inning I January 2020)

Together with the revised Conceptual Framework published in March 2019, the IASB also issued

Amendments to References to the Conc€ptual Framework in IFRS Standards. The document contains

amendments to lFRs 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS I, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12,

IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, lmlc 22, and SIC-32. Not all amendmerts, however, update those

pronouncements with regard lo references to and quotes from the fiamework so that they refer to the

revised Concepttnl Framewo*. Some pronouncements are only updated to indicate which version of
the liamework they are referorcing to (the IASC fi'amework adopted by the IASB in 2001, the IASB
framework of 2010, or the new revised framework of 2019) or to indicate that definitions in the

standard have not been updated with the new definitions developed in the revised Conceptual

Framework.

The Directos do not plan to apply any of the above until they become effective. Based on their
assessment of the potential impact of application of the above, they do not expect that there will be a

significant impacl on the company's financial statements.

iii) Eerly adoptioo of strndrrds
The Company did not early - adopt any new or amended s-tandards in year 2020.

9
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principle accounting policies adopted in the prcparation of these financial statements are set out

below:

a) Revcnue rtcognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the

Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized at the fair value of
consideration received or expected to be received in the ordinary couse of the Company's activities,
net of value-added tax (VAT), where applicable, and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Company's activities as described below:

i) Revenue ftom tte srlc of goods rnd scrvlce3 is recognized in the year in which the

Company delivers products to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

colleaability ofthe related receivables is reasonably assured.

ii) Grrtrts from Nf,tionrl Governmnt are recognized in the year in which the Company

actually receives such grants. Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. Development/capital grarlts are recogrized in the statement of
financial position and realised in the staternent of comprehensive income over the useful

life of the assets that has been acquired using such lirnds.

iii) Other incomc is recognized as it accrues.

b) Property, plant and equipment
All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain categories of property, planl and equipmant are subsequantly carried at re-valued arnounts.

being their farr value at the dale of re-valuation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Where re-measurement at re-valued amounls is desired, all iterns in an asset

category are re-valued through periodic valuations carried out by independent external values.

lncreases in the carrying amounls of assets arising from re-valuation are credited to other

comprehorsive income. Decreases that offset previous increases in the carrying amount of the same

asset are charged against the revaluation reserve accounl, all other decreases are charged to profit or

loss in the income statement.

Gains and losses on disposal of iterns of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing

the proceeds fiom the disposal with the net carrying arnount ofthe iterns, and are recognized in profit

or loss in the income statement.

c) Deprtcietion and impoirmcnt of property, plrnt rnd equipmnt
Freehold land and capital work in progress are not deprociated. Capital work in progress relates mainly

to the cost ofongoing but incomplete wor*s on buildings and other civil works and installations.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line

basis to write dowr the cosl of each asset or the re-valued amount to its residual value over its
estimated useful life.
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d) lntangiHe asscts

Intangible assets comprise purchased computer software licenses, which are capitalised on the basis of
costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. Thes€ costs are amortised over the

estimated usefrrl life of the intangible assets from &e year that they are available for use, usually over

thre€ years.

e) Amortisation and impairment of intangiHe assets

Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated us€fuI life of computer software

of tkee years.

All computer software is reviewed annually for impairmort. Where the carrying amount of an

intangible asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is

recognized so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount.

0 lnvestmcnt proFrty
Buildings, or part of a building (fieehold or held urder a finance lease) and land (freehold or held

under an operating lease) held for long term rental yields and/or capital appreciation, and which are

not occupied by the Company, are classified as investmenl Foperty under non-currert assets.

Investment prop€rty is carried at fair value, representing open market value determined periodically by

independent external values. Changes in fair values are included in profit or loss in the income

statement.

g) lnventories
Inventories are stated at the lower ofcost and net reslizable value. The cost of inventories comprises

purchase price, import duties, transportation and handing charges, and is determined on the moving

average price method.

h) Trade end other reccivaHes
Trade and other receivables are recognized al fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

ll

The umual rates in use are as follows:
. Motor Vehicles and Motor bikes 25o/o

. Buildin€F 2.5o/o

. Computer Equipment 30%

. Fumiture, Fixtures, Fittings and Office Equipment's 12.50/"

. Plant, Equipment's and Meters 33.3%

. Computer software 2oo/o

A full year's depreciation charge is recognized both in the year of asset purchase and in the year of
asset di sposal .

Ilems of property, plant and equipmort are reviewed annually for impairmant. Where the carrying

amount of an &sset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amormt, an impairment loss is

recognized so that the ass€t is writtem down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount.
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amounts. These are assessed for impairment on a conlinuing basis. An estimate is made of doubtful
receivables based on a review ofall outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written off
after all efforts at recovery have been exhausted.

i) Taration
Current inconre tax

Cunent incone tax ass€ts and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to

be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and lax laws used to compute the

amount are thos€ that are enacted or subslantively enacted, at the reporting date in the area where the

Company operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to iterns recognized

directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and not in the statement offinancial performance.

Current income t8x assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to

be recovered fiom or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rales and tax laws used to compute the

amount are those thai are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the area where the

Company operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized

directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and

Deferrcd tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting puposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect of
taxable temporary differences associated with investrnents in controlled entities, associates and

interests in joint ventures, wher the timing of the reversal of the tonporary differences can be

controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the exlent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and

the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except in respect of
deductible temporary differences associated with investments in connolled entities, 8ssociates and

interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recogrrized only to the extent that it is probable that

the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable furure and taxable profit will be available

agains which the ternporary differances can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax Essets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax assa to be utilized. Unrecognized defened tax a:isets are re-assessed at each reporting
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Management periodically evaluates positions tsken in the tax retums with respect to situations in

which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where

appropriate.
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date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset lo be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates

that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax

rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enactd at the reponing date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deficit is reoognizd outside surplus or
deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying trursaction in net assets.

Deferred tax assets and defened tax liabilities are offset ifa legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the defened taxes relate to the sarne taxable

Company and the same taxatioo authority.

j) Cash and cesh equivalcnts
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank short-term deposits on call and

highly liquid invesunents with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily

convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insigrrificant risk of changes in value. Banli

account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various Commercial

Banks at the end of the reponing p€riod. For the purposes of these financial statonents, cash and cash

equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to authorized public officers and/or

institutions which were not surrendered or accountd for at the end ofthe financial year.

k) Borrowings
Interest bearing loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at fair value being received, net of issue

costs associated with the borrowing. Subsequantly, these are measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue cost and

any discount or premium on settlement- Finance charges, including premiums payable of settlement or
redemption are accounted for on accrual basis and are added to the carrying amount ofthe insrumenl
to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise. Loan interest accruing during

the construction ofa project is capitalised as part of the cost ofthe projed.

l) Trede and other poyrHes
Trade and other payables are non-interest baring and are carried at amortised cost, which is measured

at the fair value of contractual value of the consideration to be paid in future in respoct of goods and

services supplied, whether billed to the Company or not, less ary payments made to the suppliers.

m) Retiremeot bcnefit obligations
The Company operates a defined contribution scheme for all full-time employees from July l. 2019

The scheme is administered by an in-house team and is funded by contributions Iiorn both the

company and its employees. The company also cootributes to the statutory National Social Security

Fund (NSSF). This is a defined contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Act.

The company's obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated fiom time to
time and is currently at Kshs,400 per employee per month.

n) Budgct informetion
The original budget for FY 2019-2020 was approved by the Mathira water and sanitation co ltd board

t
T
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on 09-06-2019. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made lo the approved budget in
accordance with specific approvals ftom the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriatrons are

added to the original budga by the Company upon receiving the respective approvals in order to
conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the Company recorded additional appropriations of
3,400,000on the 2019-2020 budget following the goveming body's approval.

The Comparry's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed

in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accnral basis using a

classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the

budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from the

accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved

budget. A comparison of budga and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved

budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addition to

the Basis difference, adjusrments lo amormts in the financial $atements are also made for differences

in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and

the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and acnral amounts and the acttrals as per the statement offinancial performance

has been presented under section xxx of these financial statements.

o) Serviceconcessionarrangemcnts
The Company analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in determining

the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirernents. ln particular, whoe a private party

contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Company recognizes that asset when, and only when. it
controls or regulates the services the operator must provide togaher with the asset, lo whom it must

provide them, and at what price. ln the case of assets olher than 'whole-of-life' assets, it controls,

through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - &ny sigrrificant residual interest in the asset at

the €nd oflhe arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent

that an asset has been recognized, the Company also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a

cash consideration paid or received.

p) Comperativc figurcs
Where necessary comparative figrres for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

q) Subocquent cvents

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year and with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020.
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5. STGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION I.JNCERTAINTY
The preparation ofthe Company's financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires managernent

to make judgrnents, estimates and assumptions that affecl the reported amounts ofrevenues, expenses,

assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting penod.

However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a

material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affeaed in future periods.

f, stimates and essumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a sigrificant risk of causing a material adjustrnent to thc carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, arc described below. The Company based its

assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.

However, existing circumstances and assumptiofti about future developments may change due to

market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are

reflected in the assumptions whan they occur.

Useful lives rnd residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets itre assessed using the following indicaton to inform
potential future use and value from disposal:

o The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts ernployed by the Company

. The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes

o The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed
. Availability offlrnding to replace tle assets

. Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions
Provisions were raised and managernent determined an estimate based on the information available.

Additional disclosure of these estimates ofprovisions is included in financial slatement

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the

obligation at the reporting d8te, and are discounted to pres€nl value where the effect is material.

6. REVENI.]E

r 1s.580.768

I t 5,580, 768

Gross sales of services I t 6.279.438

I 16,279,{J8l'otal

t5

20t9t2020
Ir.shs

20t&20r9
Kshs
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7. OTHER INCOME (Grants)

8. STAFF COSTS

9. DIRECTORSCOSTS

r0. .\Dlt t\tsI'RA]'roN ( os'r's

Vitens Evides Grant 0 I,521 ,403

0 350.000SNV Netherlands Development Organization

0 567,300Salary Grant

WSTF Subsidy Receipts 2 t,M3,513 5.269.t7 |

County Govemment of Nyeri Receipts 5.097.378 0
'l'otal 26.140,891 7,707,871

Salaries and allowances of permanent ernployees 45.487.457 43,228.594

Wages of tanporary employees 285.850 3 t 0.025

Compulsory national health insurance schemes 996.050 1,006.700

Compulsory national social security schemes 384.000 396.400

3.577.380 3,282,784Other pension contributions

2.40t.325Leave pay and gratuity provisions 1,997,229
'l otxl 52,727,96 50,625,828

Thc avcragc numbcr of cmployccs at thc cnd

of the year was:
2Senior Managernent t

t2Permanent employees

Managernent

Middle level t2

Permanentemployees Unionisable 24 21

40 l{Temporary and contracted employees
'l otal 79 n2

3,254,500 3.859.400Directors' emoluments

Travelling & Subsistence I I 9.1 ,433 t,514.840

Printing and Stationery 397,564 697 644

Advenising and Public Relations 648.009 782,793

Company social responsibil ity 124,6{,0 2t3,720

l6

I

I

Description

20r9n020 20182019
Kshs l(rhr

I

I

I

I

Description l20I9nV20
lrcts

20l8/20 r 9

Kshs

Descriotion 2019t2020

IGhs

20r8/2019

Kshs

2016n0r9

Ksbs

2019/1020

Description Kshs
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Newspaper & Periodicals 74.280 t04,700

Entertainrnent 3l I ,820 521.490

Staff Welfare expense 259,795 308.968

Functions celebrations expcnse 634.900 778.370

lnsurance 4,394,I 00 4.l3 s.301
'l'raining 309.875 t ,022,4s6

Consultancy 636, I40 588.980

Legal services 565, t00 1.169.729

Electricity 2.160.783 2.186.645

r35.364 188.476

Seminars 739.797 940.I s0

Uniforms 13.143 46s.435

Security Services 4.800.802 4.508.123
'Iclcphone 856,504 771.639

Postage 74.610 99.230

General office expenses 234.938 s1q s1s

sports 678.476 837.544

Provision for audit fee 400,000 400.000

Bank Charges 274.Ot7 0
'I'0tal 19.919,I l0 22,775,772

I I. OPI]RATION AND MAINTENAN(]E (]OST

2.062.484 2.400,928Motor vehicle & bikes running cost - Fuel & Oil
I.t 65.982Motor vehicle & bikes running cost - Repairs 702,928

410.000Renewal of Water permit license & subscription 427.050

289.300 223.s00Maintenance ofPurnps

Maintenance of water supply systern

Maintenance of sewerage systems

Repair & Maintenance -Equipment, Building

Repair & Maintenance - Computers

2,696,.3%

2.240,272

8 r 3,866

3I,I50

3.076.438

3,275,611

1.702.261

34,484

Software Maintenance 6 t 2,910 7 t4.000

Manhole covers 401.490

524.200Engineering design & maps

2.130,020 6,251,250Service Lines Rehabilitation
Pipes & Fittings 7,39t,5 t 9 9,837.51 3

2.409,556 2,525,800Chemicals

6,750 t67.700Ground maintenance

Loose tools and equipment's 163,7 I 5

t7

Cleaning Materials

I

20t9-2020

IGhs

201&2019

KshsIlesc ri ption

I

I , t s2.875
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Compensation of Persons affected by Karatina Urban water
Project

380, 126

Depreciation 3s,243.3t4 2.m1.46t
Amortization Sofl ware 2.851.E)6

Tanks rehabilitation and intakes I,418.922

Other levies and fees,{.ab analyical fee 123.000 r09.000

Environmental audit Assessment t65,000

Prolrsion for bad debts 562.s98 I,437,357

Wasreb levy 4,65 I , 178 3,526,693

r.560,000 I,560,000

67,5I5, t 22 {4,817,465

Warma levy

Total

t2. 1-INAN('E COSTS

I J. OPERA'!'t NG PROt'lr( LO!i.S)

14. PROPER',T\" PI,AN'|' AND EQU IPM ENT

Interest expense on loans 0 l.72l .l l 8
'l otal t) 1,721,t I E

The operating profiU(toss) is arrivcd at after
charging/(crediting):
Staffcosts (note l2b) 52,727,966 50.625.828

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 35,243,314 2.901 .461

2.85 I.996Amortization of intangible assets

562,598 | ,437 ,35?Provision for bad and doubtful debts

3.254.500 3.8s9,400Directors' emoluments - fees

400.000 400,000Auditors' remuneration - current year fees

95,0{0,374 59.22{.046f'otal

COST OR
VALUATION
Ar Jui 1.2019 9.780.555 12.-5 8.(rt I.830.729 5.e97 -625 t6.'130.622 'l .3t'1.99t 54.17r. r23

21.392.. O 69.1A\t22 93.570.676l.322.lru .l8l(.(Do 0 t.007.3.t0

Transfers (76.678.1l3)

Addilions

l8

76.678.1t3

20t9t2020 I 20rt/20t9

Dcscription Iushs k-shs

2019t2020

Ksh3

201ff2019

Kshs

Molor
vcbida!.
inddlE. Futtit!ir

md
nahlr

Cmfcer
r&
tdraa
Gqdps
t

c+ird 
I

'or{. In I

p.ot !!r Itu,r,
Frr.hoH bnd
and buflding

tlarl rnd
Eqdpmt

moaor
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I l.l0lJse | 1,00l,621 1.830,729 7,fiX,965 0r r4'8or,r45 l .l?,74 1 ,8 t 9

3t,753,205t.126.712 10,31E.337 i l.r3r,76r 5.Ot 3,8U) 13,864557 i o

241.9 t5 87.37 t670.821 59't -311 33 (>.15 8(n) {) 35,243,314

66.9 *s 19t.668.658 lJ t9,lJ2t0,949,t58 5.61 I. t 56 47,50E..u 7 0

9,43{,70t 6l l*s9?I2,0 2,.16J tJ9J,8G) 61,292,128 0 m,745.tOO

Al Junc $,
2020

At Jub l, 2019

Charge for the

i eaf

Aa Jure 30,

2020

NET BOOK
VALIIE ,l
June .]0, 2O2O

Property, plsnt 8nd equipment include the following items that are fully depreciated:

DEPRI]CIATI
ON

cosT
VALUATION

oR

Addrtions

Al Junc J},2019

At Juh 1.2018

Charge lor the 1"ear

At June.l0,2019

NET BOOK
VALUE

5.583.000 I 00086IMotor vehicles, including motor cycles

55.265

| .543. t36

4.433,417

7,E92,ElE

Funriture and Fittings

Cornputers and related equipment

Plant and Equipment

442.n7
4.629.407

t3,300,252

23,95/,,776

e.7lt0.555 12.5t3.62t t.830,729 5.355..125 t4.7 35.422 0 44.2t5.7 52

9.955.39 t0 0 o I 642.200 1,995,2m I 7,317,991

5,997,625 16,7 30,672 1)11,v\ 5.t,I 71.1239,780,555 12,5 tJ.62 t t.E30.?29

DT]PRI.:('IATION

9.5E(,.575 l_031-90tr 4.s92.t73 12.428.5.16 2t{_n5 t .7tl0

2r.1.200 13t -762 99,853 | 42r,636 l,43il,Ol I 
i

0 L 2.e0r.,r6r

I,426,742 loJrsJlT t. tlt,761 5.0r].m9 t3J62-q51 0 .11753.205

7 )17,99t 22A17 9198.J5J.8t3 2.rtsr&s 698.968 98J.816 2,868,0(5At June 30, 2019

l9

Ar July 1.2018

Motor
rrldchr.
in ludint,

C-mfrtcr
rl
rtfril
Gtshc
t

FulIitura
rnd
fltdn8'

Crpltd
rort Is

Prrogtatl

Frt fiofd hnd
end buildio3

rmlor
avcL!

Plut rnd
EquipB!.rt fotrl

I

I Normsl annual deprcriation

i Chargc
i (lost or Valuation

20r9/2020

I

2018/2019 Fr. bold
Lod rnd
Lulldlng

Molor
ydrad.r,
tDclualD!,
Gelor
cytlr

Furnltnrt
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nninf,
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Property, pl$nt and equipment include the following items that are fully depreciated:

I 5. INTANGIBI.l] ASSETS

I6. INVENTORIES

Motor vehicles, including motor cycles 4.330.000 866.000

Fumiture and Fittings 392.M7 49,008

Computers and related equipment 3,079,287 I,025,403

Plant and Equipment 9.049.01 8 2,986,t76

t6,850,172 4,926,5E7

(]OST

Ar July I
Additions 8.556,843

Disposals

At June 30 8,556,843

AMORTIS,I'tlON
At JLrly I

Charge for the year 2.8s r.996

Disposals

Irnpairment loss

2,851,996At June 30

NE'I' BOOK VALTIE
At June 30 5,70{,8{7

Chemicals 68.625 000t5

stationery , Consumables and loose tools 974.883 r,902,006

rneters 5.885,057' 37.100

Water pipes and Finings 5,t24,984 5,0 t 0,I 08

t 2,05J,5.19 6,96,1,211

20

lNorrnel annurl

I deprecietion charge

('osl or valuation
!0 t8/20t 9

2019t2020
- Kthr-

201&2019

Kshs

201912020

- Ksh,

I lorsvzorsl*__I xstrs
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51,u2,7't7 42,87't,767Trade receivables (note l7 (b))

22,7 50 9E,405Salary Advance

s3.665,527 42,916,161Net trade and other receivables

17. (a)TRADE AND OTHER RECI,IVABLES

r7 (b) TRADE RECETVABLES

18. a) BANK AND CASII BAI,ANCES

The bulk of the crsh Nt bank wss held st the Company's mein bankers; Family Bank of Kenya,

Cooperative Bank of Kenya and Safaricom's Mpesa Mobile Money platfornl.

b) BANK AND CASH BALANCES
The detailed make - up of bank balances and short term deposits is as follows:

56.490,029 45.238.071Gross trade receivables

(2.824.s0r) (2,26t.9O4)Provision for doubtlirl receivables

53,665.527 42,976,167

s.366.5s2.70 4,297,616.70Less than 30 days

8.049,829 6.446,425Between 30 and 60 days

10,733.t05 8,595,233Between 6l and 90 davs

13,416.382 10,744,042Between 9l and 120 days

16,099,658 12,892,850Over 120 days

s3,665,s27 12,976,167

25.395,979 38,7 t 2,328Cash at bank

18.675 93.490Cash in hand

25,414,6511 J6,805,E1E

a) Current account
0 il 3659779200 30.588 42,635Cooperative bank

(2.s27.37E) (627.295)Familv 0s6000020 173

Sut> total (2,496,7901 (s8.r,660)

2l

20r 9/2020

lr-shs

201&/20t9

Krh.

2019no70

-K"h.
20t 8/2019r Kshs

2019/2020 20rE/20r9

K-ht

-{-

Kshs

2019t2020
-K-h.

20tu20t9
KshsAccount numhcrI.'inancial inslitution
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b) Savings Account
tr'amilv Bank

Savings account 0560000201 57 587.482 t71.787

Customer deposit account 056000020 t 58 I,187,931 540.031

Escrow Account 0560000201 72 4.967.188 5.269.t71

Project Account 05600002 t270 316.749 15.682.009

Revenue Account 0s6000021192 135.832

(iooperative bank

Savings Account 0 il 00059779200 2.078. | 58 2.M3.175

customer Deposit Account 0l100059779201 10,733,103 10.733.582

c) Others(specify)

cash in hand 18.675 93.490

M pesa 7.886.326 4.2s7.233

Sut> tot.l 27,91t,114 39,390.{78

Grand total 25,{l {,65.1 J8,805,8 t 8

I 9, ORDIN,IR}' SHARI] CAPITAI,

20. CAPITAL RESERVE
The capital reserve relales to the revaluation of certain items of property, plant and equipment. As

indicated in the Statement of Changes in Equity, this is stated after transfer ofexcess depreciation net

of related defemed tax to retained eamings. Revaluation surpluses are not distributable.

2I. FAIR VALUE AD.IUSTMENT RESERVO
The fair value adjustment reserve arises on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets,

principally the marketable securities. When a financial asset is sold, the ponion of the reserve that

relates to that assel is reduced from the fair value adjustment reserve and is recognized in profit or

loss. Where a financial asset is impaired, the portion of the reserve that relates to that asset is

recognized in profit or loss.

22. RETAINED EARNINGS
The retained earnings represent amounts available for distribution to the Company's shareholders

Undistributed relained eamings are utilised to finance the Company's business activities.

.\ulhorisrd:
100.0005000 ordinary shares ofKshs.20 par value each 100.(xx)

lssued and fully paid:

5000 ordinary shares ofKshs.2O par value each 100,()(x) 100.u)0

22

20t9no20
I(sh

20lEv20t9
Kshr
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23. B()RR()\\',tN(;S

The analyses ofboth extemal and domestic borrowings are as follows:

24. DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Deferred tax is calculated on all tanporary differences under the liability method using the enacted tax

rate, currently 307o. The nel deferred tax liability at year end is attributable to the following items:

25. l RADU,\NI) ()TltUR t'A\'.llll-Es

23.000.000 0Balance at beginning ofthe year

External borrowings during the year 85,957,510 23.000.000

Domestic borrowings during the year 0

(20.622.303)Repayments of extemal borrowings during the year

Repaymorts of domestics borrowings during the year

Exchange rate gain(losses) on revaluation ofborrowings

Balance at end of the year 88,J3s,207 23,000,000

[:ss: funounts due with one year (currenl portion) t)

Amounts due after one year (non-current portion) 88,JJs,207 2J,000,000

23,000.00088,335.207Kenya Shilling loan fiom family bank

Domestic Borrowings

88.33 5.207 23,000,000

Total balance at end ofyear 88,.335,207 23,000,000

Accelerated capital allowances

Unrealised exchange gains/(losses)

Rcvaluation surplus 0

0

10.435.819 154.622

0

0

r .5 18.875 I .36,1.253Tax losses/gains carried forward
(0)Provisions for liabilities and charges (288.779)

Net defened tax asset (liability) I I,665,915 I,5t n,E75

-l'rade payables s2.962.009 4l .360,940

hepaynents I.940.338 I 5 1.068

23

2019t2020

I(rhc
20ttxt0l9

lGhsDescription

(0)

0

20re/2u0 I

rcn*l
20lt/2019

lilchs

r 2019n020
l(shs

20lt/2019
klrs

20192020
--l("L-

20r&20r9
K3hs
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Retention/ contract monies customer deposits 13.810.590 t2.408.967

Accruals 0 2.564.000

Total balance at end ofyear 68,712,937 56,484,97.t

26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
The company also contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a defined

contribution scherne registered under the National Social Security Act. The company's obligation

under the scherne is limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time and is currently at

Kshs-20Oper employee per month.

(a) Reconciliation of opereting profiU(loss) to cash

generated from(used in) operations
(9e6.368) (5 r0.94 r )Operating profit(loss)

35.461,8 t4 2.90 t ,461Depreciation

2.85 r .996 0Amorlisation

37.098.94 tOperating profit(loss) before working capital changes

(5,089,33s)

( 10,689.360)

12.227.963

( 10.147.040)

(354.273)

3.636,887

(78 t.556)
(523.4491

( IncreaseVdecrease in inventories

( Increaseydecrease in trade and other reciivables

Increase(decrease) in trade and other payables

Increase(decrease ) Dcferred tax

1,768,12923,401,169Cash generated from(used in) operations

(b) Analysis of changes in loans

23,000.0000Balance at beginning ofthe year

Receipts during the year 85.957.5 t0
20,622,303Repaymorts during the year

88.JJ5,207 2J.fim.000Balance at cnd ofthe ycar

(c) Analysis ofcash and cash equivalents

?5.395.979 38.712.328Cash at bank

93.490Cash in hand t8.675

Balance at end ofthe year

24

25,.11{,654 J8,805,818

27. NOTES TO TIIE STATEMENT OF CASH FLO}VS

2.000,000

2l.000,000
0

2019-2020

Krh" 
-

201&20t9
Kshs

2.390.s20
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28. RI,LATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Related porty disclosure

i) Cotmty Govonment of Nyeri

The county govemment of Nyed owns substantial shareholdings in the company

hence help in making company policies it also owns number of water connections.

ii) Water Scrvices Regulatory Boord (WASREB) Act as the regulator and is paid

regulatory fee of4 % on billing by the company.

'[ransactions with relrted perties

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks

and effects of changes in foreign currency. The company's overall risk management programme

focuses on unpredictability ofchanges in the business environment and seeks to minimise the potential

adverse effect ofsuch risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels ofrisk. The company does

not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extorded to clstomers with an

established credit history.

The company's financial risk managernent objectives and policies are daailed below:

0) Credlt rlsk
The Company has exposure to crcdit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay

amounts in full when due. Crcdit risk arises from cash and cash equivalants, and deposits with banks,

as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investsnents.

Management ass€sses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial position,.

past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external assessment

in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts pres€nted in the $atement of financial

25

a) Grants from the Government

Grants from Vitens Evides I .52 | .403

Grants from SNV Netherlands dlpt Org 0 350,000

0Salary grant

Subsidy income WSTF 2l.043.513 5.269,171

s,o97,378County Govt of Nyeri

'Iotal 7,70't,E74

b) Key management compensation

26.l40,E9l

Directors' emoluments 3,859,400

s.728.394Compensation to key management

Total 9.766,261 9,587,79.1

567.300

201+2020--K"d - I 201&20t9
I rcts

0

3.254.500

6,5|,764
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position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the company's management

based on prior experience 8nd their assessment of the current economic envirorunent. The delayed
payments espocially from govemment agencies is a challenge to the Company and the Company has

been engaging with the respective officers for payments.

ai) Liquidity risk managemcnt
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk managanent rests with the Company's directors. who have

built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's
short, medium and long+erm funding and liquidity managematt requirements. The Company manages

liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under nonderivative financial
liabilities by tfteir remaining contractual maturitics at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contracnral undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact ofdiscounting is not significant.

At 30 June 2020
Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 0

53.665,527
0

37.56s.869
0

16,099,658 0

0
Bank balances 25,414,654 25,4t4,654 0 0
Total 79,080,181 62,980,523 16,(x'9,55E 0
At 30 June 2019
Receivables from exchange transactions 42.976,167 30.083.317 t2.892,850 0
Receivables fiom non-exchange n-irnsactions 0 0 0 0
Bank balances 38.805.818 38.805.81 8 0 0
Tota I 8r,7E1,9E5 68,889,135 12,892,850 0

r{t 30 June 2020
Trade payables I.396.538 1,692,497 49.872,974 52p62,009
Current portion of borrowings 0 0 88,335,207 88,335,207
Provisions 0 0 0 0
Deferred income
Employee benefi t obligation

0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
'l otal lJ96.53tt 1,692,197 l l8,208,l E t 141,297,216
At 30 June 2019
Trade payables 38,052,065 2.068.047 t,240,828 4t,360,940
Current porlion of borrowings 0 23,000,000
Provisions 0 0 0
Defened income 0 0 0 0
Employee benefi t obligation 0 0 0 0
'fotal 3E,O52,065 24,240,82a
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2,O@,M7

I

Totrl
rmount

IGhs

Fulll'
prforming

Kshs
Past due 1 lmpoired

I$hs Kshs

Lcss than I I

month 
]

Kshr l

Bctsccn l-3 I

Dootu I

IG-hJ

Over 5
months

Ifths
fotal
Kshs

0 23.000.000
0

64,360,940
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(iii) Mrrket risk
The board has pur in place an internll audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the

Company on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal sccounting

and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as tnterest rate, equity prices and

foreign exchange rates which will affect the Company's income c lhe value of its holding offinancial

instrunents. 'Ihe objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures

within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Overall responsibility for rnanaging markel

nsk rests with the Audit and fusk Managernent Comminee.

The company's Finance Departnrent is responsible for the development of detailed risk management

policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committee) and for the day to

day implementation of those policies, The emergence of Community water projecls exposes the

Company lo market risks. The Company is seeking interventions ftom the regulators to come up with

policies that will regulate their numbers and their management.

a) Foreign currency risk
The Company has no transactional currancy exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of
goods and services that are done in currencies other than the loca! currency. lnvoices denominated in

foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and conversion at the time of
payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

I
I

0
0

0

0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0

At 30 Junc 2(120

Financial assets

lnvesmlents
Cash

Debtors
Financial l,iabitities

00 0Trade and other payables

0: 0Borrowings

Net foreign curency
asset{liability)
At 30 June 2019

I
Fin{ncial assets

0 0Invcs(n)cnts

Cash

Debtors
t inancial l.iabilities
Trade and other payables

Elonowings
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0

I

----+-------------------0l ol 0l
0

Ksh

Nshs

Other
curncncies

Kshs

Total
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0

t) 0

b) Foreigr currency scnsitivity analysis

The Company is not exposed to any foreign currenry sensitivity

2020
Fluro

L]SD

20t9
Euro
I]SD

a) Intcrcst rrte rfuk
Interesl rate risk is the risk that the Cornpany's financial condition may be adversely affected as a

result of changes in interest rate levels. The company's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits.

This exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises mainly

from interesl rate movements on the company's deposits.

Mrnagcmcnt of interest ratc risk
To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that offer

favourable inlerest rates.

Scnsitivity rnrlysis
The Company analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity

analysis. This involves determining the impact ur profit or loss of defined rate shifts. The sensitivity

analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates,

remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as the prior year.

Frir velue of finencial esscts and liatilities
r) Financial itrstrumcnB measured at fair value

Determination of fair value and fair vdues hierarchy
IFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation

techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained fiom

independent sources, unobservable inputs reflect the Company's market assumptions. These two ty'pes

ofinputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

o lrvcl I - Quoted prices (unadjustcd) in active marksts for identical assets or

liabilities. This level includes listed equity securities and debt insmtments on

exchanges.

. Lrvel 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable

for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is. derived

from prices).

0

0009'o

0000

00.
0oOo/"

28

0 0

i Net forcign currency

lasset/(liability)

('hange in
currtnt-\'rale

Kshs

Eflerl on Proft I

bcfore ox I

- --- Krh. I

Efiect on

_-.!gs!q
Kshs

0
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. l€vel 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are nol based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). This level includes equity investrnents and debt instruments with
sigtificant unobserrable components. This hierarchy requires the use of observable
market data when available. The Company considers relevant and observable market
prices in its valuations where possible.

The following table shows an analysis of financial and non- financial instruments recorded at fair value by
level of the fair value hierarchy.

iv) Capital Risk Managcment
The objective ofthe Company capital risk managernent is to safeguard the Board's ability to continue
as a going concern. The Company capital stnrcture comprises ofthe following fimds:

Revaluation reserve

Retained earnin[F

(- ital reserve

'fotal funds

'['otal borrowin
Less: cash and bank balances

Net deb

I,inrrncirl ,\ssets

0 0 0

0 7 t ,31 3,599 0 7l ,3 t 3,599

Quoted equity investments
Non- financial Assets

Land and buildings
Investment propeffV

(l 9.434.701 0 9.434.70t
(i

At 30 ,lune 2019
Financial Assets

0

0

80,7.15,t00 80,7{5,300

Quoted equity investrnents 0 0 0
Non- financial Assets

14.064. t06 14.064.106lnvestment property

!4r{and buik!rys
0

0

0

0 8.353.8t 3
22,117,9t9

0
0
l)

8.353.813
22,117.9t9

0
(33,803.09s)

0

132.806.727)

0 0

(33,803,095) \32,8$6,727)

88.335,207 23,000.000
(2s.4 r 4.654)

347

(38,80s,818)

0.59
69'Y"(Jcrring

excess cash and cash uivalents

29

271"/"

\t 30 June 2020
Level I

I(shs
L*vcl 2

lGhs
Level 3

Kshs
Totsl
Kshs

0

0

4!}aqq
Kshs

_2ol&Jo12
lishs
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30. INCORPORATION
The Company is incorporated in Kanya under the Kenyan Companies Act and is domiciled in
Kenya.

3I. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period"

32. CURRENCY
The financial statements arc pres€nted in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

30
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AFPEXTDII( 1: PROGRESS Or FOIJDW IrP Of AUDII1OR
RTCOUIETDATIOI| S

Thc following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and managemert comments that

were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues as shown

below with the associated time fiame within which we expect the issues to be resolved.

Non-
Revenue
Water
48.7zYo

(NRW)

Managing Director

)

3

2Et September 2020
Dete....................

30,L212021
Not
Resolved

DAVID
GATHOGO
MD

) Capital
Reserves

This relates to funding done to
the company by variolrs stake

holders However, no
documentation was provided to
the company for record
purposes. We have written to
Tana water board which carried
out various Funded Projects to
provide supporting
documentation for our record
puryoses.

30fi2/2021
DAVID
GATHOGO
MD

Not
resolved

The company has established a
non-revenue rvater departmant
that is headed by a Technical
officer. The team will ensure
increased metering,
rehabilitation of dilapidated old
water pipes and curbing
irrigation in rural areas. We have

established a district metering
area (DMA) which is a
continuoui engagement in our
areas ofsupply. Il's the intention
ofthe company to convert all
unmetered connection to
metered connections

Sign

ll

l

Rcfercnc
e No. on
the
extemal
rudit
Report

Issuc /
Obocrva
tims
ftom
Auditor

Focal Point
pcrso[ to
rcloh'r lhe
Lrsue (Nrmc
eed
dcsipation)

Tincfrrme:
(Put I drte
whcn you
erpect the
issue to be

rcsolved)

Managcment comnrenS

Stitus:
(Rrsolved
/ Not
Rcsolved)
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APPEITDIX 2: PRGTECTS IUPLEDIEIITED Br THE COUPAJTT

the State SAGA Funded

St8tus of Projccts completion

l\lanrging Director

2Eth September 2020
Sign Dote.....................

L.

Karatina Urban
Water
Rehabilitation
Proiect

I Wstf
AVorld
Bank

t8
Months

600/o

subsidy
oftotal
cost

YES YES

I Karatina
Urban Water
Rehabilitation

Ksh
108,957,5 | 0

Ksh
t08,957,5 t0

Ksh
108,957.510100%

Ksh
108,9s7,510

wstf
AVorld
Bank

32

lftoject
] Numbcr

Donor lPeriod/
lduratio
ln

lD-*
lcommit
lmert

Separate donor reponing
required as pa' the donor
agreem€nt

hoiect title Consolidated in t}ese
financial statements.

Total projea
Cost

I Total
j experrded to
ldate

Completiqr I Budgn
% to date I

Sources
of funds

hojecr \ct til

I
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